INSIGHTS DECEMBER 2018

A monthly digest of significant taxrelated court decisions and regulatory issuances (includes BIR, SEC, BSP and various government agencies)

NINTH Issue, Series of 2018



CONTENTS

•	HIGHI	LIGHTS for December	Page No. 3-4
•	COURT ISSUANCES		
	0	SUPREME COURT	5 5-10
•	REGUI	LATORY ISSUANCES	
	0	BIR ISSUANCES	11
	0	BIR RULINGS	11-12
	0	SEC	12-13
•	ARTICLES WRITTEN		13-14
•	OUR E	EXPERTS	15

HIGHLIGHTS for **DECEMBER** 2018

Supreme Court Decision

• Injunctive relief before the RTC is not available as a remedy to assail the collection of a tax. (Commissioner of Internal Revenue vs. Standard Insurance Co., Inc., GR No. 219340, and November 7, 2018).

Court of Tax Appeals Decisions

- Freight forwarders are not subject to local business tax on reimbursable expenses, representing arrastre, documentation, trucking handling charges, storage fees, duties and taxes, among others. (Kuehne + Nagel, Inc. vs. City of Paranaque, CTA Case No. 189).
- The situs in local franchise tax is where the privilege is exercised. (The City Government of Tagum vs. National Transmission Corporation, CTA AC No. 190 (UDK-SP 015) November 14, 2018)
- There is no law or regulation requiring a VAT-registered supplier to prove that the PEZA/BOI VAT zero-rating certifications issued to its buyers are not yet revoked for VAT zero-rating purposes. (Toledo Power Company vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8792, November 5, 2018).
- Issuance of WDL is tantamount to denial of protest. (Manila Medical Services, Inc. (Manila Doctors Hospital) vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8907, November 6, 2018).
- MOA is not equivalent to an LOA. (Central Luzon Drug Corporation vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8952, November 14, 2018).
- Instructional letters, journal and cash vouchers evidencing advances extended to affiliates qualify as loan agreements subject to DST. (San Miguel Paper Packaging Corporation vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 9288, November 14, 2018).
- The authority granted under Revalidation Notice is not the same authority granted under an LOA. (Commissioner of Internal Revenue vs. Herbalife International Philippines, Inc. CTA EB No. 1612, November 15, 2018)s
- A generation company, to be entitled to VAT zero-rating, should be authorized by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) to operate the generation facilities. (Hedcor Sabangan Inc. vs. CIR, CTA Case no. 9276, November 20, 2018).
- A taxpayer who availed and fully complied with the provisions of the Tax Amnesty Law under RA 9480 is immune from the payment of taxes covered in the amnesty. (Gardens by Sanders, Inc. vs. CIR, CTA Case No. 9342, November 27, 2018).
- Donation made for the purpose of complying with the legal requirements of the dissolution of marriage does not negate the presence of donative intent. (Victor Manlapaz vs. CIR, CTA Case No. 9765, November 23, 2018).
- While business expenses can be substantiated by adequate records other than official receipts, vouchers alone are insufficient to support the alleged expenses. (Organizational Change for Learning vs. CIR, CTA En Banc No. 1679, November 19, 2018).
- Before a case can be elevated to the CTA En Banc, the Court in Division must have finally disposed of the case. It cannot be taken from an interlocutory order. (Securities Transfer Services vs. CIR, CTA En Banc No. 1633, November 19, 2018).

- Failure to strictly comply with the prerequisites in RMO 1-2000 or RMO 72-2010 is not fatal to a taxpayer's availment of a preferential rate under a tax treaty. (Secretary of Finance vs. CTA, CTA EB No. 1668, November 20, 2018).
- A City cannot impose income tax on the government as it is a limitation imposed by the Local Government Code. (City of Davao vs. Te Deum Resources, CTA En Banc No. 1636, November 20, 2018).
- In claims for refund of unutilized CWT, a taxpayer-claimant does not have to prove actual remittance of taxes withheld to the BIR. (CTA En Banc 1666, CIR vs. PPI Prime Ventures Inc., November 23, 2018).

BIR Issuances

- RR No. 23-2018, November 21, 2018 This revenue regulation pertains to the amendment of certain provisions of RR No. 17-2011, as amended, which implements RA No. 9505, otherwise known as the Personal Equity and Retirement Account (PERA) Act of 2008.
- RR No. 24-2018, November 28, 2018 This revenue regulation pertains to the amendment of Section 9 of RR No. 25-2003 relative to the determination of the DOE on whether the automobiles subject to excise tax exemption are Hybrid or Purely Electric Vehicles pursuant to the TRAIN Law.
- RMC No. 96-2018, November 29, 2018 This revenue memorandum circular clarifies the tax treatment
 of the group health insurance premiums and director's fees.

BIR Rulings

- BIR Ruling No. 1314-18, October 31, 2018 The sale of weapons, equipment and ammunitions to the AFP shall be exempt from VAT subject to the condition that the same shall be directly and exclusively used for its projects, undertakings, activities and programs under the Revised AFP Modernization Act.
- BIR Ruling No. 1315-18, November 07, 2018 If the useful life of the property originally estimated
 under previous factual conditions is no longer reasonable, the law allows the taxpayer to lengthen or
 shorten the useful life of the property.
- **BIR Ruling No. 1365-18, November 16, 2018 -** A liquidating corporation does not realize gain or loss in the distribution of its remaining assets to its shareholders as a consequence of its liquidation.

SEC Issuances

- MC No. 15, S. 2018, November 9, 2018 This memorandum circular provides guidelines for the protection of SEC registered non-profit organizations from money laundering and terrorist financing abuse
- MC No. 16, S. 2018, November 9, 2018 This memorandum circular requires all SEC covered institutions to amend their respective Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention Program (MLPP) to conform to the 2018 guidelines.
- MC No. 17, S. 2018, November 29, 2018 This memorandum circular revises the General Information Sheet (GIS) to include beneficial ownership.

Article Written

• Less Negative 11th RFIN. Business Mirror: Tax Law for Business, November 13, 2018. This article discusses the changes in the Regular Foreign Investment Negative List in relation to the State policy to attract and promote investments from foreign investors.

COURT DECISIONS

I Significant Supreme Court Decision

Injunctive relief before the RTC is not available as a remedy to assail the collection of a tax.

A taxpayer was assessed for Documentary Stamp Tax (DST) for taxable years 2011 to 2013. For the 2011 assessment, Preliminary Assessment Notice (PAN), and subsequently, Formal Letter of Demand (FLD) were issued by the BIR, which the taxpayer timely protested. The BIR denied the FLD and accordingly, issued a Final Decision on Disputed Assessment (FDDA). The taxpayer sought reconsideration of the FDDA. Thereafter, the taxpayer likewise commenced a Civil Case with the RTC for the judicial determination of the constitutionality of Section 108 and 184 of the Tax Code with respect to the taxes to be paid by non-life insurance companies, with prayer for the issuance of a temporary restraining order (TRO) or of a writ of preliminary injunction.

The Supreme Court ruled that the RTC has no jurisdiction over the case. The High Court said that injunctive relief before the RTC is not available as a remedy to assail the collection of a tax. Action for declaratory relief was procedurally improper as a remedy.

The Supreme Court noted that an action for declaratory relief is predicated on the attendance of several requisites, specifically: (1) the subject matter of the controversy must be a deed, will, contract or other written instrument, statute, executive order or regulation, or ordinance; (2) the terms of said documents and the validity thereof are doubtful and require judicial construction; (3) there must have been no breach of the documents in question; (4) there must be an actual justiciable controversy or the "ripening seeds" of one between persons whose interests are adverse; (5) the issue must be ripe for judicial determination; and (6) adequate relief is not available through other means or other forms of action or proceeding. In this case, the Supreme Court said that the third, fourth, fifth and sixth requisites were patently wanting. (Commissioner of Internal Revenue vs. Standard Insurance Co., Inc., GR No. 219340, November 7, 2018).

Note: With this decision of the Supreme Court, it appears that declaratory relief is not a proper remedy on self-assessing provisions of the Tax Code. In *Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Josefina Leal*, the Supreme Court held that the jurisdiction to review the rulings of the CIR pertains to the Court of Tax Appeals, not to the RTC, considering that BIR Rulings are actually rulings or opinions of the Commissioner implementing the Tax Code, which were issued pursuant to her powers under Section 245 of the Tax Code. Further, under RA No. 1125, as amended, such rulings of the CIR are appealable to the CTA as it involves "other matter arising under the National Internal Revenue Code or other laws or part of law administered by the Bureau of Internal Revenue".

II Significant Court of Tax Appeals Decisions

Freight forwarders are not subject to local business tax on reimbursable expenses, representing arrastre, documentation, trucking handling charges, storage fees, duties and taxes, among others.

¹ G.R. No. 113459, November 18, 2002.

² Delta Air Lines, Inc. v. Secretary of Finance, CTA EB No. 1113, September 10, 2015, *citing* Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Josefina Leal, G.R. No. 113459, November 18, 2002.

A taxpayer was assessed for local business tax. The taxpayer argued that its reimbursable expenses, representing arrastre, documentation, trucking handling charges, storage fees, duties and taxes, among others, do not form part of its gross receipts, thus should not be subject to local business tax.

In ruling for the cancellation of the assessment, the Court ruled that Section 133 (j) of the Local Government Code of 1991 clearly and unambiguously proscribes LGUs from imposing any tax on the gross receipts of transportation contractors, persons engaged in the transportation of passengers or freight by hire, and common carriers by air, land or water. In view of the express limitation in Section 133(j), Section 143 (h) cannot be used as basis for the imposition of business taxes on freight forwarders.

Even for the sake of argument that the taxpayer should be held liable for LBT, the Court noted that the tax base may still differ depending on the documentation employed, especially with regard to reimbursable expenses or advance payments made on behalf of the principals/customers. Determination must still be made if the amount actually or constructively received should be considered "income" for purposes of computing the tax base. (Kuehne + Nagel, Inc. vs. City of Paranaque, CTA Case No. 189).

Note: Section 133(j) prohibits local government units from the imposition of local taxes on the gross receipts of transportation contractors and persons engaged in the transportation of passengers or freight by hire and common carriers by air, land or water. Note that the prohibition is on the imposition of tax on the gross receipts. It would seem therefore that business tax may still be imposed provided that the tax base should not be gross receipts. Further, business tax cannot be imposed on reimbursable expenses.

The situs in local franchise tax is where the privilege is exercised.

TRANSCO, a government instrumentality created pursuant to Republic Act No. 9136, otherwise known as the Electric Power Industry Reform Act of 2001, maintains a principal office in Quezon City. On the other hand, DANECO, one of TransCo's power customer, has an office located within the territorial jurisdiction of the City of Tagum. With this, the City of Tagum assessed TRANSCO of local franchise tax, arguing that TRANSCO is liable for local franchise tax on gross receipts from DANECO. The LGU argues that since DANECO, which is a power customer of TRANSCO, has an operation in its territorial jurisdiction, then TRANSCO is liable for the local franchise tax.

The Court ruled that since the local franchise tax partakes of the nature of an excise tax, the situs of taxation is the place where the privilege is exercised, i.e, where the franchisee has its principal office and from where it operates, regardless of the place where its services or products are delivered. In this case, Tagum City cannot justify the imposition of the subject local franchise tax on taxpayer TRANSCO, there being no showing that TRANSCO's principal office is in Tagum City; neither does it appear that it is from the said City where TRANSCO operates. Correspondingly, Tagum City cannot impose a local franchise tax on TRANSCO's gross receipts or any part thereof.

The fact that TRANCO's power customer, namely DANECO, has an office in Tagum City, does not justify the imposition of franchise tax. This is simply because there is no indication that DANECO and TRANSCO are one and the same entity; nor is one, a part or an extension of the other. Thus, the operation of an office by DANECO in Tagum City cannot be considered as an operation of an office by TRANSCO. Correspondingly, Tagum City cannot be treated as the situs of the subject local franchise tax or where the privilege of TRANSCO is being exercised. (The City Government of Tagum vs. National Transmission Corporation, CTA AC No. 190 (UDK-SP 015) November 14, 2018).

There is no law or regulation requiring a VAT-registered supplier to prove that the PEZA/BOI VAT zero-rating certifications issued to its buyers are not yet revoked for VAT zero-rating purposes.

In a Motion for Partial Reconsideration, the CIR argues that the taxpayer failed to prove its entitlement to VAT zero-rating. While the taxpayer presented its BOI and PEZA Certifications to prove its entitlement for VAT zero-rating, the CIR however argues that the taxpayer did not provide evidence that these certifications are not yet revoked.

The Court ruled that the taxpayer need not provide evidence that the PEZA and BOI certifications are not yet revoked. There is no law or regulation requiring a VAT-registered supplier to prove that the PEZA/BOI VAT zero-rating certifications issued to its buyers are not yet revoked for VAT zero-rating purposes. (Toledo Power Company vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8792 November 5, 2018).

Issuance of WDL is tantamount to denial of protest.s

The CIR questions the jurisdiction of the Court over the case and argues that the WDL is not the adverse decision that is appealable to the CTA but the Final Decision on Disputed Assessment (FDDA).

The Court ruled that it has jurisdiction over the case holding that the basis for the taxpayer's filing of the petition is the issuance of the WDL. The purpose of the issuance of said WDL is for the enforcement of collection on the alleged assessment by the CIR which is within the provision of NIRC. The issuance of the WDL is the proof of finality of the assessment and such is tantamount to an outright denial of taxpayer's protest.

The WDL as issued by the CIR is tantamount to his decision as to the final denial of the taxpayer's protest on the alleged assessment. It is only upon the receipt of said WDL that the period of appeal shall commence. It is not only CIR's decision on disputed assessments that is appealable before the Court but also other matters arising under the NIRC or other laws administered by the BIR. (Manila Medical Services, Inc. (Manila Doctors Hospital) vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8907 November 6, 2018).

MOA is not equivalent to an LOA.

Here, the taxpayer argues that the assessments are void for lack of a valid LOA authorizing the Revenue Officer (RO) to conduct tax examination against it and for lack of electronic LOA as required by the rules.

The Court cancelled the assessment for lack of authority of the examining Revenue Officer. Again in this case, the Court ruled that an LOA is valid only for a period of 120 days, and will be invalidated thereafter unless revalidated after submission of a Progress Report. Further, a revalidation shall be covered by the issuance of a new LOA under the name(s) of the same investigating officer(s), and the superseded LOA(s) shall be attached to the new LOA issued.

In this case, the authority of the Revenue Officer for the continuance of the audit was simply embodied in a MOA, which, according to the Court, is not sufficient basis for the RO's authority to examine the taxpayer for it cannot in any way be deemed equivalent to a LOA. Absent the necessary issuance of a new LOA specifically naming the person to whom the case will be reassigned with the corresponding annotation, there is no authority to conduct the investigation/audit. (Central Luzon Drug Corporation vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 8952 November 14, 2018).

Instructional letters, journal and cash vouchers evidencing advances extended to affiliates qualify as loan agreements subject to DST.

In this case, the CTA resolved that instructional letters as well as the journal and cash vouchers evidencing the advances extended to affiliates qualify as loan agreements upon which DST may be imposed. In the same vein, DST may be imposed on the advances made to related parties, which constitute as loan agreements. (San Miguel Paper Packaging Corporation vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, CTA Case No. 9288 November 14, 2018).

The authority granted under Revalidation Notice is not the same as that of an LOA.

Resolved by the CTA En Banc in this case is the issue of whether or not the revenue officer(s) who examined a taxpayer in a tax assessment case was duly authorized by the CIR or his duly authorized representative.

Here, the revenue officer who recommended the issuance of a PAN was not named in the issued LOA. Her supposed authority emanated only through a Memorandum Referral and Revalidation Notice. There was no new LOA issued specifically designating her to examine and audit the books of accounts and other accounting records

of the taxpayer. Thus, the Court said that the revenue officer cannot be considered as validly authorized to conduct an examination and audit.

All audit investigations must be conducted by a duly designated RO authorized to perform audit and examination of taxpayer's books and accounting records, pursuant to an LOA. In case of re-assignment or transfer of cases to another RO, it is mandatory that a new LOA shall be issued with the corresponding notation thereto. Accordingly, since the RO, in the instant case, was not duly authorized by a new LOA, the subject tax assessments, which came about as a result of her examination of Herbalife's books of accounts and accounting records, are void.

Note: Associate Justice Ringpis-Liban made a dissenting opinion on this, holding that the Revalidation Notice is equivalent to an LOA. She equated the issuance of LOA as a contract of agency. Amongst others, the revalidation contains all the elements necessary to establish a contract of agency between the CIR and the newly RO assigned. The primary consideration in determining the true nature of a contract is the intention of the parties. (Commissioner of Internal Revenue vs. Herbalife International Philippines, Inc. CTA EB No. 1612 November 15, 2018).

A generation company, to be entitled to VAT zero-rating, should be authorized by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) to operate the generation facilities.

In this case, the Court reiterated that for an entity to be entitled to VAT zero-rating as a generation company, it should be authorized by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) to operate the generation facility. Generation companies are required to secure a Certificate of Compliance (COC) from the ERC before they can operate the facilities used for generation of electricity, as provided under Rule 5, Section 4 (a) of the Implementing Rules and Regulations of Republic Act (RA) No. 9136. (Hedcor Sabangan Inc. vs. CIR, CTA Case no. 9276, November 20, 2018).

A taxpayer who availed and fully complied with the provisions of the Tax Amnesty Law under RA 9480 is now immune from the payment of taxes covered in the amnesty.

Here, the taxpayer was assessed for deficiency taxes for taxable years 1999, 2000, 2001, and 2004. It argues, among others, that the assessment is erroneous considering that it is supposed to be immune from assessment for the years 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2004, due to its availment of the government's Tax Amnesty Program under RA 9480. The taxpayer accomplished the requirements to avail tax amnesty including the submission of SALN. However, the BIR alleged that the taxpayer's SALN did not contain complete declaration of the Company's assets and liabilities, arguing that the understatement of the same is a valid basis for disallowing the benefits and immunities under the government's Tax Amnesty Program.

The CTA noted that Sec. 4 of RA 9480 provides that the SALN shall be considered true and correct, unless the amount of declared net worth is understated to the extent of 30% or more, as may be established by parties other than the BIR or its agents. Aside from its bare allegation, the BIR did not prove the same during the proceedings. Considering that the taxpayer fully complied with the provisions of the Tax Amnesty Law, it should be immune from the payment of taxes, as well as the appurtenant civil, criminal or administrative penalties under the NIRC of 1997, as amended. (Gardens by Sanders, Inc. vs. CIR, CTA Case No. 9342, November 27, 2018).

Donation made for the purpose of complying with the legal requirements of the dissolution of marriage does not negate the presence of donative intent.

This is a claim for refund for alleged erroneous payment of donor's tax. In this case, a Regional Trial Court declared the marriage of spouses Manlapaz as null and void ab initio. The Decision likewise dissolved the property relations between the former spouses. In the Decision, the RTC also approved an "Agreement on Custody and Support and Liquidation, Dissolution, and Separation of the Property Regime" entered into by and between the former spouses. Section IV of the Agreement provides that a condominium unit shall be donated to the former

spouses' common child. In accordance with the Agreement, the former spouses executed a Deed of Donation in favor of their common child, paying therein donor's tax.

A claim for the refund of the paid donor's tax was subsequently filed with the BIR. Here, the claimant alleged that there was no donative intent when they gave the property to their common daughter, as they only did it to comply with the requirements of the annulment of the former spouses' marriage and the dissolution of their property relations.

The case reached the CTA. The Court ruled that there was a donation subject to donor's tax. Even granting that the subject donation was made by the former spouses for the purpose of complying with the legal requirements of the dissolution of the property relations between them, the same does not negate the presence of donative intent in the subject transaction considering that the former spouses gave portion of their patrimony to their common child without any material consideration. Considering that the former spouses gave the subject property to their common child without any material consideration, there arises an implication of intent to do an act of liberality or animus donandi. (Victor Manlapaz vs. CIR, CTA Case No. 9765, November 23, 2018).

While business expenses can be substantiated by adequate records other than official receipts, vouchers alone are insufficient to support the alleged expenses.

In an assessment case for taxable year 2009, the Court sustained the BIR's disallowance of the taxpayer's business expenses as deductions from gross income due to the taxpayer's inadequate supporting documents. The taxpayer insists that it is entitled to a tax deduction, arguing that notwithstanding its failure to present official receipts as proof of expenses incurred, the taxpayer nonetheless presented vouchers showing that the subject expenses were indeed incurred.

The Court denied the taxpayer's argument. The Court ruled that while it is true that business expenses can be substantiated by other adequate records, and not just official receipts, vouchers alone are insufficient to support the alleged expenses. Further, the taxpayer failed to reconcile the discrepancies noted by the BIR. The taxpayer failed to present specific and convincing argument to reconcile the noted discrepancies. (Organizational Change for Learning vs. CIR, CTA En Banc No. 1679, November 19, 2018).

Before a case can be elevated to the CTA En Banc, the Court in Division must have finally disposed of the case. It cannot be taken from an interlocutory order.

The Second Division of the CTA issued a Resolution holding that the Commissioner of Internal Revenue (CIR)'s right to assess the taxpayer for 1) deficiency VAT for the 1st quarter of 2009; and 2) deficiency EWT for the months of January to May 2009 had prescribed. The Second Division thereafter set the case for hearing for the remaining tax deficiency assessments for taxable year 2009.

Aggrieved, the taxpayer filed a Petition for Review with the Court En Banc. The Court En Banc ruled that the Petition for Review was premature. Clearly, the resolution neither fully and finally terminate nor dispose of the case. In fact, the Court in Division in the assailed resolutions still set the case for hearing for the presentation of evidence on the other remaining deficiency tax assessments.

As provided under Section 1, Rule 41 of the Revised Rules of Court, governing appeals from the Regional Trial Courts (RTCs) to the Court of Appeals, an appeal may be taken only from a judgment or final order that completely disposes of the case or of a matter therein when declared by the Rules to be appealable. Said provision, thus, explicitly states that no appeal may be taken from an interlocutory order. (Securities Transfer Services vs. CIR, CTA En Banc No. 1633, November 19, 2018).

Failure to strictly comply with the prerequisites in RMO 1-2000 or RMO 72-2010 is not fatal to a taxpayer's availment of a preferential rate under a tax treaty.

This case arose from a Tax Treaty Relief Application (TTRA) filed by a taxpayer, which the CIR denied due to late filing of the application. The CIR argued that the filing should always be made BEFORE the first taxable event - non-compliance of which would have the effect of disqualification.

The CTA ruled in favor of the taxpayer, reiterating its earlier decisions that the application for TTRA should merely operate to confirm the entitlement of the taxpayer to the relief. In other words, the basis of the entitlement to the preferential rate is not the confirmatory ruling from the BIR but the Tax Treaty itself. Nothing in RMO No. 1-2000 which would indicate a deprivation of entitlement to a tax treaty relief for failure to comply with the 15-day period. (Secretary of Finance vs. CTA, CTA EB No. 1668, November 20, 2018).

A City cannot impose income tax on the government as it is a limitation imposed by the Local Government Code.

The City of Davao taxed a taxpayer on dividends it received from the San Miguel Corporation (SMC) shares of stock and interest income on money market dividends, claiming that the taxpayer is a non-bank financial intermediary and is engaged in activities that would qualify the company to be subject to local business tax. The Court rejected the City of Davao's contention, holding once again that the power of local government units to levy taxes, fees and charges emanates from Sec. 5, Article X of the 1987 Constitution, subject to the guidelines and limitations as Congress may provide. Some of these limitations are provided in Sec. 133 of the LGC of 1991, such as the imposition of income tax (except when levied on banks and other financial institutions) and imposition of taxes, fees or charges of any kind on the National Government.

In this case, the Court notes that the taxpayer is not a non-bank financial intermediary, thus, the interests and dividends it received may not be the subject of local business tax. Further, it has been held that the taxpayer here is considered a Coconut Industry Investment Fund (CIIF) Company and therefore, the SMC shares of stock it owns are considered owned by the government. Thus, any tax thereon is a tax on the government. It is not allowed. (City of Davao vs. Te Deum Resources, CTA En Banc No. 1636, November 20, 2018).

In claims for refund of unutilized CWT, a taxpayer-claimant does not have to prove actual remittance of taxes withheld to the BIR.

In a taxpayer's claim for refund of unutilized CWT, the BIR alleges that the taxpayer-claimant failed to present documents such as official receipts, sales invoices, detailed general ledgers, sales register, and reconciliation schedules to effectively show that the claimed CWT forms part of the taxable gross income as reflected in the taxpayer's Annual Income Tax Returns (ITRs) covered by the claim. The BIR likewise argues that the taxpayer failed to show adequate proof of actual remittance of the withheld taxes to the BIR, arguing that the act of withholding is different from the act of remitting the said taxes and that the best evidence of remittance is a certification from the BIR's Revenue Accounting Division showing the fact of remittance of the taxes supposedly withheld. The BIR further argues that the certificates of creditable tax withheld do not constitute conclusive evidence of payment and remittance to the BIR. Finally, the BIR argues that the testimonies of the various payors and withholding agents are required to prove remittance of taxes to the BIR.

The CTA En Banc stressed that the taxpayer does not have to prove actual remittance of the taxes to the BIR. It is sufficient that the certificate of creditable tax withheld at source is presented in evidence to prove that taxes were indeed withheld. Citing CIR v. PNB, it was ruled that certificate of creditable tax withheld at source is the competent proof to establish the fact that taxes are withheld. It is not necessary for the person who executed and prepared the certificate of creditable tax withheld at source to be presented and to testify personally to prove authenticity of the certificates. It is the payor-withholding agent and not the payee-refund claimant such as the taxpayer in this case, who is vested with the responsibility of withholding and remitting income taxes." (CTA En Banc 1666, CIR vs. PPI Prime Ventures Inc., November 23, 2018)

BIR Issuances

RR No. 23-2018, November 21, 2018. This revenue regulation pertains to the amendment of certain provisions of RR No. 17-2011, as amended, which implements RA No. 9505, otherwise known as the Personal Equity and Retirement Account (PERA) Act of 2008.

The regulation now requires the submission of proof of source of funds, instead of proof of earnings, to establish a PERA.

Additionally, the regulation also made changes to the exception in the application of the Early Withdrawal Penalty. Transfers not subject to the penalty are now those made within fifteen (15) working days from withdrawal instead of the previous two (2) working days. Also, deduction of fees of the administrator, custodian and product provider from PERA assets are not subject to Early Withdrawal Penalty, provided that such deduction is made with the consent of the contributor.

RR No. 24-2018, November 28, 2018. This revenue regulation pertains to the amendment of Section 9 of RR No. 25-2003 relative to the determination of the DOE on whether the automobiles subject to excise tax exemption are Hybrid or Purely Electric Vehicles pursuant to the TRAIN Law.

Purely Electric Vehicles shall be exempt from excise tax on automobiles while Hybrid Vehicles shall be subject to fifty percent (50%) of the applicable excise taxes on automobiles. The determination of the exemption or 50% excise tax shall be on the basis of a Certificate of Non Coverage (for Purely Electric Vehicle) of Certificate of Conformity (for Hybrid Vehicles) issued by the DENR – Environment Management Bureau (EMB).

RMC No. 96-2018, November 29, 2018. This revenue memorandum circular clarifies the tax treatment of the group health insurance premiums and director's fees.

The circular deletes from RMC No. 50-2018 the pertinent provisions relative to the group health insurance premiums and director's fees, which were not affected by the provisions of the TRAIN Law.

Under RMC No. 50-2018, premiums on health card paid by the employer for all employees under a group insurance shall be included as part of other benefits subject to the P90,000 threshold. On the other hand, if the individual premiums are paid for selected managerial and supervisorial employees, these are subject to fringe benefit tax.

The said tax treatment was not mentioned in the TRAIN Law which prompted its deletion under RMC No. 96-2018. As such, the tax exemption of premiums on health card paid by the employer is restored.

BIR Rulings

The sale of weapons, equipment and ammunitions to the AFP shall be exempt from VAT subject to the condition that the same shall be directly and exclusively used for its projects, undertakings, activities and programs under the Revised AFP Modernization Act.

This BIR ruling is issued pursuant to a letter requesting clarification relative to *BIR Ruling No. 1030-2018* dated June 28, 2018 issued in favor of Toyota Davao City, Inc. in relation as to whether the exemption from value-added tax (VAT) will still apply on the purchase of motor vehicles by the Armed Forces of the Philippines (AFP) if the fund for the same is sourced not from the AFP Modernization Act Trust Fund as mentioned in Republic Act (RA) No. 10349 but rather from RA No. 10924 or the General Appropriations Act of 2017.

The BIR ruled that pursuant to Section 10 of RA No. 10349, the sale of weapons, equipment and ammunitions to the AFP shall be exempt from VAT subject to the condition that the same shall be directly and exclusively used

2018 **Insights 11**

DISCLAIMER: The contents of this Insights are summaries of selected issuances from various government agencies, Court decisions and articles written by our experts. They are intended for guidance only and as such should not be regarded as a substitute for professional advice.

for its projects, undertakings, activities and programs under the Revised AFP Modernization Act. For the VAT exemption to apply, the AFP has to certify that the purchase of the motor vehicles is in accordance with the projects, undertakings, activities and programs of the AFP under the Revised AFP Modernization Act. (BIR Ruling No. 1314-18, October 31, 2018).

If the useful life of the property originally estimated under previous factual conditions is no longer reasonable, the law allows the taxpayer to lengthen or shorten the useful life of the property.

This BIR ruling is issued pursuant to a letter dated June 29, 2017 requesting confirmation of a taxpayer's proposed change in useful life of its assets, classified in its books as "Other Utility Equipment" and "Machinery & Equipment - Toolings", for tax and financial accounting purposes.

In view of the assessment of the useful lives and depreciation methods of the subject assets based on experience as to its actual wear and tear including the frequency of its replacement and/or maintenance, the BIR confirms that the taxpayer may adopt change in the useful life of its subject assets for both tax and financial accounting purposes as basis for depreciation expense. (BIR Ruling No. 1315-18, November 07, 2018).

A liquidating corporation does not realize gain or loss in the distribution of its remaining assets to its shareholders as a consequence of its liquidation.

This BIR ruling is issued pursuant to a letter dated November 5, 2015 requesting confirmation of the tax consequences of the distribution of liquidating dividends consisting of shares of stock of a domestic corporation, by a non-resident foreign corporation to another non-resident foreign corporation.

The BIR ruled that a liquidating corporation does not realize gain or loss in the distribution of its remaining assets to its shareholders as a consequence of its liquidation. The transfer by the liquidating corporation of its remaining assets to its stockholders in exchange for the surrender and cancellation of the shares is not considered a sale. Hence, the transfer of SLI shares from ASC to SC in a form of liquidating dividends is not subject to Philippine income tax, including capital gains tax. (BIR Ruling No. 1365-18, November 16, 2018).

SEC Issuances

MC No. 15, S. 2018, November 9, 2018. The memorandum circular provides for guidelines for the protection of SEC registered non-profit organizations from money laundering and terrorist financing abuse.

The circular outlines, among others, risk assessment, compliance requirements, mandatory disclosures, good governance system, internal audit system, sustained outreach programs and seminars, preventive measures, coordination and information sharing, investigation and information gathering, enhanced registration and monitoring system, and penalties.

MC No. 16, S. 2018, November 9, 2018. The memorandum circular requires all SEC covered institutions to amend their respective Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention Program (MLPP) to conform to the 2018 guidelines.

The revised or updated MLPP shall be submitted to the SEC within six (6) months from the effectivity of the guideline.

MC No. 17, S. 2018, November 29, 2018. This memorandum circular revises the General Information Sheet (GIS) to include beneficial ownership.

The circular requires all SEC registered domestic corporations, both stock and non-stock, to disclose in the revised GIS their beneficial owners. A beneficial owner is any natural person who:

- 1. Ultimately owns or controls the corporation; or
- 2. Has ultimate effective control over the corporation.

Further, where a corporation is owned through multiple layers, any intermediate layers of the company's ownership structure should be fully identified. Such information shall be declared in the GIS and illustrated in an ownership chart to be attached thereto clearly showing the intermediate layers with their respective ownership amounts.

Articles Written

Business Mirror: Tax Law for Business

Less Negative 11th RFIN By: Mabel L. Buted

The Foreign Investments Act of 1991 declared it as a policy of the state to attract, promote and welcome productive investments from foreign investors in activities or areas which significantly contribute to the national industrialization and socioeconomic development. Foreign investments are encouraged in enterprises that significantly expand livelihood and employment opportunities; enhance economic value of farm products; promote the welfare of consumers; expand the scope, quality and volume of exports and their access to foreign markets; and/or transfer relevant technologies in agriculture, industry and support services.

In attracting foreign investments, there is generally no restriction on the extent of foreign ownership of businesses operating in the Philippines. There are, however, specific industries or activities where foreign ownership is restricted or limited by the Constitution and/or by the applicable laws. Others are regulated by special laws and restricted or limited due to some policy considerations.

To guide the investing public, the Foreign Investments Act mandates the formulation of a Regular Foreign Investment Negative List covering investment activities open to foreign investment and those reserved to Filipinos. Since the effectivity of the Foreign Investment Act, there had been 11 RFINL that were issued, each of which had its own peculiarities. The latest of this is the 11th RFINL, which was signed by the President on October 29, 2018. This 11th RFINL aims to relax restrictions on foreign participation on the regulated activities or areas. With this, the 11th RFINL was made less negative.

One of the notable changes made was the removal of "no foreign equity" restriction on the following five businesses or activities: (a) Internet business (Internet access providers that merely serve as carriers for transmitting messages, rather than being the creator of messages/information); (b) teaching at higher education levels provided that the subject being taught is not a professional subject; (c) training centers engaged in short-term high-level skills development that do not form part of the formal education system; (d) adjustment companies; and (e) wellness centers. In other words, 100-percent foreign equity is now allowed in these areas.

The 11th RFINL also liberalized the practice of some professions in our country. Foreigners may now practice the following professions, provided that their home country allows Filipinos to be admitted to the practice of these professions: (a) accountancy; (b) agriculture; (c) architecture; (d) chemical, civil, electrical, mechanical, geodetic, metallurgical, mining and sanitary engineering; (e) customs brokers; (f) dentistry; (g) medicine; (h) nursing; (i) pharmacy; and (j) physical and occupational therapy.

Foreign equity participation in contracts for the construction and repair of locally funded public works, subject to applicable regulatory frameworks, was increased from 25 percent to 40 percent. Likewise, foreigners may now also own up to 40 percent of equity (previously at 20 percent) in private radio communication network companies. According to sources, our country is one of the most restrictive countries toward foreign direct investments, and so, these changes were introduced. The direction is geared toward "greater liberalization" as, in fact, amendments

to some of our laws including the Public Service Act, Retail Trade Act and no less than our Foreign Investment Act are in the works to achieve this.

I just hope that the changes already made and those which are proposed would meet the intended purposes or objectives of their introduction (more foreign investment, greater competition, more jobs and improvement of the economy). I also hope that, whatever the good end in mind, nothing which are too less negative to defeat our right to utilize our resources would be placed. It is not bad, anyway, to maximize the resources that we could get, including those that the foreigners may contribute, so long as we're protected.

BDB Law's "Tax Law for Business" appears in the opinion section of Business Mirror every Thursday.

Our Experts

If you have any comments or questions concerning the contents of this issue of Insights, you may contact any of our experts



BENEDICTA DU-BALADAD Managing Partner & CEO T: +63 2 403 2001 loc. 300 dick.du-baladad@bdblaw.com.ph



FULVIO D. DAWILAN
Senior Partner
T: +63 2 403 2001 loc. 310
fulvio.dawilan@bdblaw.com.ph



IRWIN C. NIDEA, JR.
Partner
T: +63 2 403 2001 loc. 330
irwin.c.nideajr@bdblaw.com.ph



RODEL C. UNCIANO
Senior Associate
T: +63 2 403 2001 loc. 140
rodel.unciano@bdblaw.com.ph



MABEL L. BUTED
Senior Associate
T: +63 2 403 2001 loc. 380
mabel.buted@bdblaw.com.ph